
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/84936151423
mailto:city.clerk@colfax-ca.gov
























City Attorney Cabral confirmed the change would not put the City at risk. 

 

Mayor Pro Tem Lomen stated he agreed with the change. 

 

Mayor Mendoza stated she is okay with the change after consulting with City Attorney Cabral. 

 

No Public Comment was provided for this slide. 

 

 SLIDE 13: 

 

Mr. Tankard provided information and requested direction from Council regarding business signage and 

advertisement. 

 

Councilmember Fatula noted this is a definitional question. 

 

Mr. Tankard agreed. 

 

Councilmember Fatula questioned whether or not an identification mark, provided example GSPC, is a logo. He 

stated his answer would be yes. Councilmember Fatula went on, noting the letters are both identifiable and a logo, 

asking why it would be restricted. He provided the example of trademarking GSPC, and asked if it would be text 

or a logo, noting the difference is specifying what the font is and the definition is ambiguous. Councilmember 

Fatula stated it is different than advertising, provided an example of GSPC versus advertisement. 

 

City Manager Heathcock inquired to Mr. Tankard whether or not the State Regulations are silent on this. 

 

Mr. Tankard responded yes but he would double check. He noted the intention is to keep businesses from 

including someone smoking or a bong or similar images that easily identifies it as a cannabis business. Mr. 

Tankard said a green cross has connotation to medicinal cannabis use but it isnôt as noticeable to the public and 

the intention of this is to prevent other images. 

 

Councilmember Fatula requested to have all signs be required to receive approval by Council. 

 

Mayor Mendoza stated she liked that idea noting other businesses already have to receive approval for signs. 

 

City Manager Heathcock confirmed sign permits are generally approved by the City Planner and by requiring 

cannabis signs to come to Council it would delay the process. He then added to Councilmember Fatulaôs point 

that when you are approving or disapproving whether it is subjective or not. 

 

Councilmember Fatula stated the sign is either text only with no advertisements or it is a logo and if it is a logo, 

how do you decide the green cross is okay but something else is not. He stated he does not want to be in the 

middle of debates, that he wanted to get the decisions made once and for all. 

 

Mayor Mendoza requested input from Councilmember Douglass. 

 

Councilmember Douglass stated his is not in favor of voting yes on this. 

 

Councilmember Burruss agreed with Councilmember Fatula that it should be removed. 

 

Mayor Pro Tem Lomen agreed with Councilmember Burruss and Councilmember Fatula. 

 

Mayor Mendoza stated she is also in favor of removing the requirement. 

 









Mayor Pro Tem Lomen stated he would like to stick to his original comments and that Council should move past 

this item.  

 

Mayor Mendoza stated she agreed with Councilmember Douglass. 

 

Mayor Mendoza requested to receive Public Comment. 

 

Councilmember Burruss read a question received from Wendy Dion asking if other businesses are required to 

hold a bond. Councilmember Burruss began to refer the question to City Manager Heathcock but stated this isnôt 

something Council is going to move forward with. 

 

City Manager Heathcock confirmed that other than development or something related to structure, that is required, 

he is not aware of a bond requirement. He requested City Attorney Cabral provide input. 

 

City Attorney Cabral commented that in construction projects typically the bidder is required to provide a bid 

bond but he did not believe the type of application that would work in this scenario. 

 

Councilmember Fatula noted that what brought this to his attention was when he was reading the indemnification 

part, and asked if someone is indemnifying the City and theyôre out of business, what does the City do. 

 

City Attorney Cabral stated there should be property insurance, noting it should survive termination of the 

business. 

 

Councilmember Fatula asked if the City should be named in that insurance for a termination or shutdown. 

 

City Attorney Cabral answered he believed theyôre supposed to be insured anyway. 

 

Councilmember Fatula stated he had not seen any requirement for insurance on any of the documentation as of 

yet. 

 

City Manager Heathcock stated it is not something we typically ask or require of our commercial businesses at 

this time. 

 

Councilmember Fatula asked if it is insurance it may not even exist. 

 

City Attorney Cabral confirmed it may not, noting that it depends on whether the person occupying the premises 

insures the premises. He added normally a renter is required to have a recovery policy and usually the property 

owner has a backup policy, but every circumstance is different. 

 

Councilmember Fatula agreed that is how he had his set up. 

 

Mayor Mendoza requested confirmation City Manager Heathcock had the direction of Council on this matter. 

 

City Manager Heathcock confirmed he understands Council does not want to move forward with this requirement 

and that he agreed with City Attorney Cabral that there is uncertainty about how it could be bonded. He agreed 

Council can move on from this item. 

 

Mayor Mendoza requested to move to the next slide. 

 

 SLIDE 15: 

 

Mr. Tankard provided information and requested direction from Council regarding odor control. 





Wendy Dion commented: Yesterday it smelled like a rotten outhouse all over town which is normal, it makes me 

nauseated but thereôs no way to stop it. The smell of cooking meat bothers others, the smell of paint, sulfur, 

fertilizer, etcetera, creates sensitivities. Are all businesses going to be required to omit no odor outside of their 

business or just cannabis? 

 

City Manager Heathcock responded by stating the air quality control board would be doing enforcement on items 

of this nature. He added the City can follow up. City Manager Heathcock said he is hearing Ms. Dion inquire 

whether or not there are going to be higher restrictions on cannabis than other businesses in the community, he 

stated he is not hearing that from Council but noted it is up to Council to put in whatever policy they see 

appropriate. 

 

Mayor Mendoza requested to put this item to the side because Council would come back to it when 

Councilmember Burruss had comments from the air quality board. She requested to move on to the next slide. 

 

 SLIDE 16: 

 

Mr. Tankard provided information and noted this question came from Councilmember Burruss who brought it to 

the attention of City Attorney Cabral. He requested input from City Attorney Cabral. 

 

City Attorney Cabral stated it is typical for ordinances to allow certain implementation done by resolution. He 

stated when you are adopting fees, creating or implementing regulations it is not a problem using a resolution but 

if you want to amend the ordinance, it must follow the ordinance amendment process. City Attorney Cabral added 

it is not that big of a deal, it requires a second meeting, but he believed things can be accomplished without 

amending the ordinance. He asked if that was understood. 

 

Councilmember Burruss agreed. 

 

Councilmember Fatula asked City Attorney Cabral if the rate structure for all the phases is included in the 

ordinance, if by resolution Council could approve this yearsô rates. 

 

City Attorney Cabral confirmed Councilmember Fatulaôs statement. He stated he would take a closer look to 

make sure those types of things could be done by resolution. 

 

Councilmember Fatula commented this is a moot item. 

 

Councilmember Burruss reported Mayor Mendoza stepped out for a moment. She requested comments from 

Councilmember Douglass and requested Mayor Pro Tem Lomen run the meeting in the Mayorôs absence. 

 

Mayor Pro Tem Lomen agreed and requested comments from Councilmember Douglass. 

 

Councilmember Douglass stated he had not comments. 

 

Councilmember Burruss agreed. 

 

Mayor Pro Tem Lomen agreed.  

 

Councilmember Burruss reported Mayor Mendoza had returned. 

 

Mayor Mendoza requested City Attorney Cabral repeat his statement. 

 

City Attorney Cabral provided Mayor Mendoza with a summary regarding the ordinance language that would 

allow Council to make changes by resolution rather than having to amend the ordinance every time. 









City Manager Heathcock asked City Attorney Cabral if that was appropriate. 

 

City Attorney Cabral confirmed it is appropriate. 

 

Mayor Mendoza confirmed we had already covered public comment on this slide and requested to move to the 

next slide. 

 

 SLIDE 18: 

 

Councilmember Fatula commented this slide was part of the prior slide. 

 

Councilmember Burruss agreed. 

 

Mayor Mendoza stated it is zoning. 

 

Mr. Tankard requested to go back, said he wanted to clarify one question regarding the industrial greenbelt overlay 

which he believed Mayor Pro Tem Lomen alluded to. He asked if Council wanted to prohibit Cannabis businesses 

from operating there. 

 

Mayor Pro Tem Lomen stated he thought they could include those there; said he was trying to use the terminology 

but wasnôt quite able to get to it. 

 

Mr. Tankard agreed. He stated he and staff would make sure the greenbelt was included. 

 

Mr. Tankard requested to move on. 

 

City Attorney Cabral noted there is a historic overlay district shown on the zoning map in the General Plan. 

 

Councilmember Burruss clarified Council wanted to separately define a very clear historic district that is 

completely separate from that map in the General Plan. She stated it is good to know there is that map so Council 

can make sure they are definite that this is a separate map. 

 

City Attorney Cabral stated he understood. 

 

Councilmember Fatula stated part of the reason for doing that as a long-term thing many of the buildings in the 

downtown area we could get declared as National landmarks and if we do, there is other funding for developments 

available. He stated that is what he has been trying to go after for the downtown area. 

 

Mayor Mendoza stated perfect. 

 

Mr. Tankard asked if Council wanted to go back to the cap of permits for the other cannabis activities now that 

Council addressed the other zoning issues before moving onto the application and procedure guidelines. 

 

Councilmember Fatula stated he believed he is the only one changing his vote on that. He stated he would vote 

yes on that. 

 

Mayor Mendoza thanked Councilmember Fatula. 

 

Mr. Tankard confirmed two permits for the different activities. 

 

Councilmember Fatula agreed. 

 















Councilmember Fatula asked how much longer this would go and how many more slides there were. 

 

Mr. Tankard stated we had the regulatory fees to discuss as the last topic on his list. 

 

City Manager Heathcock stated we have the policy on the fixed application window as well on page 19 that we 

need to review on there, and we need to address all the fees. He stated at the discretion of Council we can continue 

this to another date to iron out the rest of this stuff or staff can come back with some of these modifications or we 

can take a break, figure out how to mute ZOOM and come back, whatever the pleasure is of Council. 

 

Councilmember Fatula stated he had a simple suggestion on the whole fee thing that he felt could make if very 

easy to be handled. He stated there should be example fees for this year and then the fees should be set by 

resolution by Council each year, that way we make this more of a formula. Councilmember Fatula stated here is 

the components that go into the fees each year adjust the fees to where they need to be and then this slide becomes 

more of an example of how itôs done and the resolution will set the fees. He stated otherwise, Council will open 

this resolution up every year. 

 

City Manager Heathcock stated you could apply a CPI or something to it annually that would make the process. 

 

Councilmember Fatula suggested adding as determined by the City so if labor rates went higher we got it or if we 

got a bonus because weôve done so much contracting work with their consultant theyôre giving us a reduced rate, 

rates can come down, donôt specify how we set the rates only what components. 

 

City Manager Heathcock referred back to Mayor Mendoza to ask if we were going to take a break or if the meeting 

was going to be postponed. 

 

Mayor Mendoza stated we would not postpone, she said we are taking a break thank you. 

 

Mayor Pro Tem Lomen stated that sounded good. 

 

City Manager Heathcock inquired if coming back at 2:00PM worked. 

 

Councilmember Burruss and Mayor Pro Tem Lomen agreed. 

 

 *BREAK* 

 

Mayor Mendoza announced the meeting was back online and requested to do a quick check in to make sure 

Council was in attendance. 

 

Councilmember Fatula did not answer. 

 

Councilmember Douglass was present. 

 

Councilmember Burruss was present. 

 

Mayor Pro Tem Lomen was present. 

 

City Attorney Cabral was present. 

 

City Manager Heathcock was present. 

 

Mr. Tankard was present. 

 















Councilmember Burruss agreed and stated she did not recall agreeing to a 12-month period. 

 

Mayor Mendoza inquired if was at a workshop Council attended. 

 

Councilmember Burruss stated she would like to clarify that if Council is going to say that they made promises 

that they are not keeping, she stated she wanted to make sure they didnôt make a promise they are not keeping. 

She noted maybe staff could go back and check the minutes but that she did not recall agreeing to a 12-month 

specific period, she did however recall agreeing they would recuperate the costs and that that was a requirement 

for Council to move forward. Councilmember Burruss stated she would absolutely admit that she was wrong if 

she was wrong. 

 

Mayor Mendoza requested to pause and have staff check the minutes, she stated she believed it was a workshop. 

 

Councilmember Fatula stated yes it was a workshop. 

 

Councilmember Burruss requested to circle back on the item. 

 

Mayor Mendoza requested clarification that it was the workshop. 

 

Councilmember Fatula stated yes. 

 

City Manager Heathcock informed Mayor Mendoza it is in the slides, he pointed out the quote from the December 

11th, 2019 meeting. He requested the City Clerk go back to the slide he was referring to (SLIDE 21). 

 

Councilmember Burruss inquired if it mentioned 12-months. 

 

City Manager Heathcock referred to the minutes that were on the slide. 

 

Councilmember Burruss confirmed nowhere in the minutes on the slide does Council say it has to be recovered 

in the first year, she clarified that the minutes show Council stating it must be recovered. 

 

City Attorney Cabral stated he was going through his notes, he stated he recalled it was in the first year. 

 

City Attorney Cabral and Councilmember Fatula began speaking at the same time. 

 

City Attorney Cabral requested clarification of whether or not Councilmember Fatula was Mayor at that time. 

 

Councilmember Fatula confirmed yes. 

 

City Attorney Cabral stated he recalled Councilmember Fatula asked Jim Dion this is going to be paid (City 

Attorney Cabral was unable to finish as Councilmember Fatula began to speak). 

 

Councilmember Fatula stated Jimôs comment was this will be no problem; I can pay that $25,000 in a blink of an 

eye. 

 

Councilmember Burruss clarified her comment here is that she did not recall Council making a policy decision 

that promised the people that this would be recovered within 12-months. She added that we have had a lot of 

discussion, she noted maybe not in full agreement, but that she did not recall a policy decision being made and 

she requested clarification whether or not one was. 

 

Councilmember Fatula stated Council specifically stated this would be covered in this next round of licenses. He 

added we did not say a timeframe of a year but it is this next round which is probably less than a year. 























Å Remove requirement that business identification signage shall be limited to that  

needed for identification only and shall not contain any logos?

Å Make exception for existing signage?

Å Prohibit cannabis businesses from providing sponsorships?

o State regulations do not address this

Policy Direction: Business Signage / Advertisement

Chapter 5.32









Zoning: Locational Requirements
Å Existing Requirements:

o 200 feet from any residentially zoned parcel

o 600 feet from any public or private school (K-12), commercial daycare center,  

youth-oriented facility, church, or City, County or Federal government building

Å Make More Restrictive?

o 200ft from parcels where residential use is permitted

o 600ft from Historic Overlay Zone

OR

Å Align with State Requirements:

o A cannabis business shall not be located within a 600-foot radius of a school

(K-12), day care center, or youth center.

Title 17



COMMERCIAL ZONE DISTRICTS PERMITTED USES

COMMERCIAL USE TYPES C-R C-H

Commercial Cannabis Activites

Cultivation P P

Cultivation Nursery P P

Distributor P P

Manufacture P P

Microbusiness P P

Retailer P P

Testing Laboratory P P

Zoning: Commercial Cannabis Activities

INDUSTRIAL ZONE DISTRICTS PERMITTED USES

COMMERCIAL USE TYPES I-L I-H

Commercial Cannabis Activites

Cultivation P P

Cultivation Nursery P P

Distributor P P

Manufacture P P

Microbusiness P P

Retail P P

Testing Laboratory P P

άtέ = Principally permitted use

Title 17

*Not permitted in
Historic Overlay Zone*

SLIDE #18



































Draft Initial Study and  
Notice of Intent to Adopt a  
Mitigated Negative Declaration 

for the 

City of Colfax  
Sewer Collection System and 
Wastewater Treatment Plant 
Improvements Project 

Prepared for: 

City of Colfax 

Prepared by: 

Adrienne Graham, AICP 
and Associates 

August 2020 

Attachment 3







TABLE OF CONTENTS 

Attachment 3















Colfax Sewer & WWTP Improvements Project 2-1 Draft Initial Study/MND 
August 2020 

2. PROJECT DESCRIPTION

INTRODUCTION 

The City of Colfax provides sewer and wastewater treatment services within the City and to 
some residents living outside of the City limits.  The City facilities include a wastewater 
treatment plant (WWTP), 12 miles of sewer collection system and four sewer pump stations. 
The WWTP provides tertiary treatment meeting Title 22 effluent requirements.    

The City is pursuing planning and construction grant funding to fund several infrastructure 
improvements. The funds would be used to (1) construct a solar facility to offset energy 
consumption costs at the WWTP, (2) install a new aeration flotation system that would reduce 
algae contamination at the WWTP, and (3) upgrade up to 4 miles of existing sewer pipelines, 
manholes and services.  

Because the grant funding will come from the US Environmental Protection Agency (EPA), the 
improvement projects is subject to both CEQA and NEPA. The City is serving as lead agency 
for CEQA. The State Water Resources Control Board (Water Board) will serve as a responsible 
agency under CEQA and lead the NEPA review.    

PROJECT LOCATION 

The City of Colfax is located in Placer County, approximately 50 miles northeast of Sacramento 
(see Figure 2-1).  The City lies within the Sierra Nevada foothills at an elevation of 
approximately 2,400 feet mean sea level (msl). Interstate 80 (I-80) transects the city.  The sewer 
system extends from the WWTP to connections located throughout the City.  The sewer lines 
are primarily located within or adjacent to City streets, but in some cases the lines cross parcels 
and/or travel through open land (see Figure 2-2). The sewer lines that are subject to review and 
replacement are shown in Figure 2-2.  The solar facility and algae removal system would be 
located at the WWTP. The WWTP is located on 72.5 acres approximately 0.5 miles southeast of 
the City (see Figure 2-2).  The Assessor’s Parcel Number (APN) for the WWTP site is 101-161-
059-000.

EXISTING ENVIRONMENT 

The City of Colfax was established in 1849 and incorporated in 1910.1 The City’s development 
has been tied closely to the railroad established in 18652, which transects the City.  Residential 
and non-residential land uses are concentrated along the railroad and Interstate 80, which run 
parallel to each other.  The City’s downtown, located west of Interstate 80, is relatively flat.  The 
downtown is typical of communities in the Sierra Nevada foothills, with one- and two-story 
buildings that house restaurants, offices, retail stores and other commercial uses along Main 
Street.  Many of the buildings appear to date from the 1800s and early to mid-1900s.  Newer 
development, including gas stations and fast-food restaurants, are clustered around the freeway 
exits.  Residential neighborhoods in the core area also include older and newer single-family 
homes along tree lined streets. Larger commercial uses, such as car sales and automotive 
repair, are located primarily south of the City core, along South Canyon Way.  Farther from the 
downtown and I-80 corridor, residential development is more rural in nature, often on large lots 
located along roads that wind through the Sierra Nevada foothills.   

1  City of Colfax, General Plan 2020, September 22, 1998, page 1-3. 
2  City of Colfax, General Plan 2020, September 22, 1998, page 1-3.

Attachment 3



adriennegraham
Typewritten Text

adriennegraham
Callout
Colfax WWTP

adriennegraham
Callout
City of Colfax

adriennegraham
Typewritten Text
2-2



adriennegraham
Typewritten Text
     Figure 2-2Project Location

adriennegraham
Typewritten Text
  

adriennegraham
Typewritten Text

adriennegraham
Typewritten Text

adriennegraham
Typewritten Text
2-3

adriennegraham
Typewritten Text





adriennegraham
Typewritten Text
                      Figure 2-3Solar Facility and Algae Control System                        Location

adriennegraham
Typewritten Text

adriennegraham
Typewritten Text

adriennegraham
Typewritten Text
  

adriennegraham
Typewritten Text

adriennegraham
Typewritten Text

adriennegraham
Typewritten Text
2-5

adriennegraham
Typewritten Text

adriennegraham
Typewritten Text

adriennegraham
Callout
Solar Site Option 1

adriennegraham
Callout
Solar Site Option 2

adriennegraham
Callout
Algae Control System Site

adriennegraham
Callout
Staging Area

adriennegraham
Cross-Out











AutoCAD SHX Text
2260

AutoCAD SHX Text
2250

AutoCAD SHX Text
2130

AutoCAD SHX Text
2140

AutoCAD SHX Text
B R U S H

AutoCAD SHX Text
T R E E S   A N D  B R U S H

AutoCAD SHX Text
BOX

AutoCAD SHX Text
BLDG

AutoCAD SHX Text
B R U S H

AutoCAD SHX Text
B R U S H

AutoCAD SHX Text
B R U S H

AutoCAD SHX Text
2160

AutoCAD SHX Text
2155

AutoCAD SHX Text
2150

AutoCAD SHX Text
2145

AutoCAD SHX Text
2140

AutoCAD SHX Text
2240

AutoCAD SHX Text
2235

AutoCAD SHX Text
2230

AutoCAD SHX Text
2225

AutoCAD SHX Text
2220

AutoCAD SHX Text
2215

AutoCAD SHX Text
2210

AutoCAD SHX Text
2205

AutoCAD SHX Text
2200

AutoCAD SHX Text
2195

AutoCAD SHX Text
2190

AutoCAD SHX Text
2185

AutoCAD SHX Text
2150

AutoCAD SHX Text
2145

AutoCAD SHX Text
2140

AutoCAD SHX Text
2135

AutoCAD SHX Text
2130

AutoCAD SHX Text
2125

AutoCAD SHX Text
2125

AutoCAD SHX Text
2125

AutoCAD SHX Text
2120

AutoCAD SHX Text
2115

AutoCAD SHX Text
2135

AutoCAD SHX Text
2130

AutoCAD SHX Text
2125

AutoCAD SHX Text
2120

AutoCAD SHX Text
2115

AutoCAD SHX Text
2140

AutoCAD SHX Text
2125

AutoCAD SHX Text
2130

AutoCAD SHX Text
2135

AutoCAD SHX Text
2125

AutoCAD SHX Text
2150

AutoCAD SHX Text
2155

AutoCAD SHX Text
2160

AutoCAD SHX Text
2165

AutoCAD SHX Text
2170

AutoCAD SHX Text
2155

AutoCAD SHX Text
2160

AutoCAD SHX Text
2165

AutoCAD SHX Text
2170

AutoCAD SHX Text
2175

AutoCAD SHX Text
2145

AutoCAD SHX Text
2150

AutoCAD SHX Text
2145

AutoCAD SHX Text
2140

AutoCAD SHX Text
2145

AutoCAD SHX Text
2135

AutoCAD SHX Text
2130

AutoCAD SHX Text
2125

AutoCAD SHX Text
2150

AutoCAD SHX Text
2165

AutoCAD SHX Text
2160

AutoCAD SHX Text
2155

AutoCAD SHX Text
2140

AutoCAD SHX Text
2145

AutoCAD SHX Text
2165

AutoCAD SHX Text
2170

AutoCAD SHX Text
2145

AutoCAD SHX Text
2180

AutoCAD SHX Text
2175

AutoCAD SHX Text
2120

AutoCAD SHX Text
2150

AutoCAD SHX Text
2140

AutoCAD SHX Text
 E 6862800

AutoCAD SHX Text
C:\_Drawings\_Colfax\Figures\ColfaxAC_Figure-4-2.dwg

AutoCAD SHX Text
2020/02/21 8:32 AM By: Contractor 01 By: Contractor 01Contractor 01

adriennegraham
Typewritten Text

adriennegraham
Typewritten Text

adriennegraham
Typewritten Text

adriennegraham
Typewritten Text

adriennegraham
Typewritten Text

adriennegraham
Typewritten Text

adriennegraham
Typewritten Text

adriennegraham
Typewritten Text

adriennegraham
Typewritten Text
Figure 2-4

adriennegraham
Typewritten Text

adriennegraham
Typewritten Text

adriennegraham
Typewritten Text
Algae Control System Site Plan

adriennegraham
Typewritten Text

adriennegraham
Typewritten Text

adriennegraham
Typewritten Text

adriennegraham
Typewritten Text

adriennegraham
Typewritten Text

adriennegraham
Typewritten Text
Source:  Nexgen, 2020

adriennegraham
Typewritten Text

adriennegraham
Typewritten Text
2-10

























 
    3.  Environmental Checklist !

Colfax Sewer & WWTP Improvements Project  Draft Initial Study/MND 
  August 2020!3-9 

out of materials onto neighboring roadways, covering all trucks hauling soil with a fabric 
cover and maintaining a freeboard height of 12 inches, and maintaining effective cover 
over exposed areas. Compliance with Rule 228 was accounted for in the construction 
emissions modeling. 
 
Construction emissions for the Proposed Project were estimated using the most recent 
version of the California Emissions Estimator Model (CalEEMod), version 2016.3.2, and 
California Emissions Factor Model (EMFAC2017)5, as applicable. Modeling was based 
on project-specific data, where available. Where project-specific information was not 
available (for example, the age and fuel efficiencies of the vehicle fleet) default model 
settings and/or reasonable assumptions based on other similar projects were used to 
estimate criteria pollutant emissions. Modeling assumptions, calculations and data 
output files are provided in Attachments A, B, and C, respectfully, of Appendix A. Criteria 
pollutant emissions as estimated are compared to the PCAPCD’s construction 
thresholds.  

 
Construction of the full project was assumed to be completed within 5 months between 
May and September 2021.  The Solar site is anticipated to be constructed over 6 weeks 
between May and June 2021; the algae removal system would be constructed over 4 
weeks in May of 2021; and the pipeline repairs would take place over 5 months between 
May and September 2021.    This approach conservatively assumes that construction of 
the three project components occurs in the same general period. If construction of the 
project components does not overlap, daily emissions levels could be lower than 
indicated in this analysis.  
 
Table 3-3 shows unmitigated criteria pollutant emissions from construction. The 
estimates include the following basic construction scenarios. The solar facility 
construction includes site preparation, grading/excavation, drainage/utilities/trenching, 
and foundation/concrete pouring. Pipeline repair includes drainage/utilities/trenching, 
trenchless pipe rehabilitation, and paving. The algae removal system installation 
includes drainage/utilities/trenching, and foundation/concrete pouring.  
 

 
 

TABLE 3-3 
Unmitigated Construction Emissions (lbs/day) 

Phase ROG NOx CO SOx PM10 PM2.5 
Solar Facility 1 8 7 <1 <1 1 
Sewer Upgrades 2 20 21 <1 <1 1 
Algae Removal 
System 

1 6 5 <1 <1 <1 

Total 3 33 34 <1 <1 3 
PCAPCD Threshold 82 82 N/A N/A 82 N/A 
Significant Impact? No No No No No No 
N/A = not applicable 
Values are rounded to the nearest whole number and therefore values may not add directly. 
Parenthetical represents negative value. 
Source:   ESA 2020. (See Appendix A, Attachments A and B). 

 
 
As shown in Table 3-3, maximum daily regional emissions would not exceed the 

                                                
5 EMFAC2017 was updated to take into account the new SAFE Rule 1 increases in emissions. 

Attachment 3



 
    3.  Environmental Checklist !

Colfax Sewer & WWTP Improvements Project  Draft Initial Study/MND 
  August 2020!3-10 

PCAPCD’s significance threshold for any criteria pollutant. Therefore, the Proposed 
Project would result in a less- than-significant impact for construction emissions.  

 
Operation 
CalEEMod and EMFAC2017 was also used to estimate operational emissions from 
project build out, assumed to occur in 2021. Area source, energy use, water 
consumption and solid waste generation emissions were quantified using CalEEMod. 
Mobile source emissions were quantified using EMFAC2017. It was assumed that the 
Proposed Project would not result in any new employees; however, both the solar and 
algae removal system would require annual maintenance. The solar facility is anticipated 
to result in approximately 8 days of maintenance per year for washing of solar panels 
and general maintenance. It is anticipated that four two-day maintenance activities would 
occur for solar maintenance, and that approximately 20,000 gallons of water would be 
required annually to clean the solar panels. Maintenance of the algae removal system 
would result in approximately 12 trips per year and would generate 20 tons per year of 
solid waste. The trip length for both maintenance activities is anticipated at 60 miles per trip. 
 
The algae removal system would consume approximately 8,500 kWhs per year and the 
solar facility would generate approximately 1 million kWhs per year. Modeling 
assumptions, calculations, and data output files are provided in Attachment A, B, and C 
respectfully. 
 
Table 3-4 summarizes the annual operational emissions of criteria pollutants and compares 
them to the PCAPCD significance thresholds. As shown, none of the criteria pollutants 
would exceed PCAPCD’s annual thresholds. Therefore, the Proposed Project would result 
in a less-than-significant impact with respect to operational emissions.    

 
 

 
TABLE 3-4 

Unmitigated Operational Emissions (lbs/day) 
Phase ROG NOx CO SOx PM10 PM2.5 

 
Area <1 <1 <1 <1 <1 <1 
Energy <1 <1 <1 <1 <1 <1 
Mobile <1 3 8 <1 <1 <1 

Project Total <1 <1 <1 <1 1 <1 
PCAPCD Threshold 55 55 N/A N/A 82 N/A 
Significant Impact? No No No No No No 
* N/A = not applicable 
Values are rounded to the nearest whole number and therefore values may not add directly. 
Parenthetical represents negative value. 
Source:   ESA 2020. (See Appendix A, Attachments A and B). 

 
 
Health Effects 
In Sierra Club v. County of Fresno (S219783) (Sierra Club) the Supreme Court held that 
CEQA requires lead agencies to either (i) make a “reasonable effort” to substantively 
connect the estimated amount of a given air pollutant a project will produce and the 
health effects associated with that pollutant, or (ii) explain why such an analysis is 
infeasible (6 Cal.5th at 1165-66). The Court also clarified that that CEQA “does not 
mandate” that EIRs include “an in-depth risk assessment” that provides “a detailed 
comprehensive analysis!to evaluate and predict the dispersion of hazardous 
substances in the environment and the potential for exposure of human populations and 
to assess and quantify both the individual and population wide health risks associated 

Attachment 3





 
    3.  Environmental Checklist !

Colfax Sewer & WWTP Improvements Project  Draft Initial Study/MND 
  August 2020!3-12 

materials transport and handling; building construction; and other miscellaneous 
activities.  
 
The PCAPCD does not require health risk assessments for construction-related 
activities. Additionally, according to the OEHHA, projects lasting less than 2 months 
should not be evaluated due to uncertainties in assessing cancer risk from very short-
term exposures. Construction of the solar facility and the algae reduction system would 
occur in less than two months. The sewer pipeline upgrades would occur over 5 months. 
However, the repairs would occur over the length and location of pipeline needing 
repairs. There are no sensitive receptors that would be exposed to more than two 
months of emissions from activities associated with upgrading the sewer pipelines. 
Because exposure to sensitive receptors is less than two months for the extent of the 
construction activities, a quantitative health risk is not required and impacts to localized 
receptors from construction health risk are anticipated to be less than significant.    

 
Operation  
The California Air Resources Board (ARB) identifies the most notable sources of TAC 
emissions as auto body repair services, gasoline dispensing stations, manufacturing, 
distribution centers, rail yards, chrome platers, ports, petroleum refineries, and freeways 
or major roadways.7 ARB specifies buffer distances of up to 1,000 feet around stationary 
sources, and 500 feet from high volume roadways, which are identified as having 50,000 
daily trips or more on rural roadways.  
 
The Proposed Project does not include any is a solar facility and algae removal system 
installation combined with pipeline repair. Once construction activities are completed, the 
pipeline would result in no new operational impacts. The operation of the solar facility 
and algae removal system would not rely on a stationary power source or process that 
would generate TAC emissions. The Proposed Project would be electrically operated 
and would not require a generator or back-up generator to operate. Additionally, while 
heavy duty vehicles would access the site for maintenance (dumpster truck or water 
trucks), less than 100 would access the site on an annual basis with a maximum of 7 
trucks are anticipated to access the site daily. Therefore, the operation of the project 
would not have the potential to expose nearby sensitive receptors to TACs at levels that 
would pose a health risk.  

 
d. During construction, exhaust from equipment could produce discernible odors typical of 

most construction sites. Such odors could be a temporary nuisance to adjacent uses, but 
would be intermittent and would not affect a substantial number of people. Additionally, 
odors dissipate with distance. Therefore, these emissions would not create a substantial 
nuisance.  

 
Land uses that are associated with odor complaints typically include agricultural uses 
(animal husbandry), wastewater treatment plants, food processing plants, chemical 
plants, composting, refineries, landfills, dairies, and fiberglass molding. Typical 
operational activities associated with solar arrays and pipelines are not associated with 
substantial production of odors. Maintenance activities associated with the algae 
removal system could result in minor odor emissions during waste removal. This would 
occur for intermittently during routine maintenance, and would result in minimal exposure 
at locations offsite. Thus, the Proposed Project is not expected to result in objectionable 

                                                
7  California Air Resources Board,  Air Quality and Land Use Handbook: A Community Health Perspective. April, 

2005. https://www.arb.ca.gov/ch/handbook.pdf 

Attachment 3









adriennegraham
Typewritten Text

adriennegraham
Typewritten Text
3-16

adriennegraham
Typewritten Text

adriennegraham
Typewritten Text



adriennegraham
Typewritten Text

adriennegraham
Typewritten Text

adriennegraham
Typewritten Text

adriennegraham
Typewritten Text

adriennegraham
Typewritten Text
3-17





adriennegraham
Typewritten Text
3-19























 
    3.  Environmental Checklist !

Colfax Sewer & WWTP Improvements Project  Draft Initial Study/MND 
  August 2020!3-30 

could be involved in ground disturbance.  The program shall include review 
of applicable local, state, and federal ordinances, laws, and regulations 
pertaining to paleontological resources; description of the types of fossils 
that can be encountered and their general appearance; and discussion of 
site avoidance requirements and notification procedures to be followed in 
the event that a sensitive paleontological resource is found during 
construction. 

 
5(b) If paleontological resources (i.e., fossils) are discovered during ground 

disturbing activities, work shall be halted within 50 feet of the find and a 
qualified paleontologist shall evaluate the find.  If the find meets Society of 
Vertebrate Paleontology criteria, additional examination and the resource 
cannot be avoided, additional data recovery excavation shall be 
undertaken. 

Attachment 3

122















 
    3.  Environmental Checklist !

Colfax Sewer & WWTP Improvements Project  Draft Initial Study/MND 
  August 2020!3-37 

(LUST) within the city limits, but most of these sites are closed, indicating that there is no 
longer a risk of contamination. Two sites, a gas station and a railroad fuel sump, are still 
open, but under verification monitoring, indicating that remediation has occurred.  There 
are no active cases of leaking underground storage tanks.25  The only landfill that is in 
current operation in the City is the Colfax landfill26.  None of the Proposed Project 
components would be located in the vicinity of this landfill.   

 
 Although no other contaminated or potentially contaminated sites have been identified in 

the records search, there could be contamination present in areas that were occupied by 
facilities that used hazardous materials in the past, prior to current regulatory levels.  If 
present, such contamination could appear as darkened soil, or abandoned containers.  
Exposure to contaminated soils, if present, could harm construction workers, which 
would be a significant impact. Implementation of the following mitigation measure would 
reduce the potential risk of exposure to a less-than-significant level by ensuring that 
contaminated groundwater or soils, if present, are identified and remediated promptly. 
 
 Mitigation Measure 6 
 

In the event previously unidentified hazardous materials contamination is 
discovered or believed to be present, work shall stop immediately and the site 
shall be investigated by a qualified professional. If contaminated, the area shall 
be remediated by a qualified professional, in consultation with Placer County 
Environmental Health Division, the Regional Water Quality Control Board and/or 
the California Department of Toxics Substances Control, as appropriate.  Work 
shall not resume until potential hazards have been identified and managed. 

 
c. The sewer lines extend throughout the City and serve several schools, including Colfax 

Elementary School and Colfax High School.  Upgrading the pipelines would not expose 
people at the schools to hazardous materials. As discussed in Item 9a.b, above, the only 
hazardous materials in use during construction would be fuels, which would not pose a 
substantial risk.  There are no schools located within one-quarter mile of the WWTP site, 
where the solar facility nor the algae removal system would be located. For these 
reasons, this would be a less-than-significant impact.   

 
e. The airport closest to the City of Colfax is at Alta Sierra, over 5 miles to the west of the 

City.  Therefore, there would be no impact.   
 
f. During sewer pipeline upgrades, there may be some lane and/or roadway closures, 

because most of the City’s pipelines are located in streets or rights of way.  These 
closures would be for short durations and detours would be provided.  There would be 
no permanent changes to existing emergency access, nor would the implementation of 
future emergency plans be prevented.  Therefore, the impact would be less than 
significant.  

 
g. The Proposed Project would not construct any new buildings or increase the number of 

people living and working in Colfax on a permanent basis, so it would not increase the 

                                                                                                                                                       
substances-site-list-cortese-listaccessed June 10, 2020. 

25  State of California Water Resources Quality Control Board, GeoTracker, 
https://www.envirostor.dtsc.ca.gov/public/map/?global_id=60001156, accessed June 10, 2020. 

26  State of California Water Resources Quality Control Board, GeoTracker, 
https://www.envirostor.dtsc.ca.gov/public/map/?global_id=60001156, accessed June 10, 2020. 

Attachment 3









 
    3.  Environmental Checklist !

Colfax Sewer & WWTP Improvements Project  Draft Initial Study/MND 
  August 2020!3-41 

underground, and the surface would be returned to its previous condition.  The sewer 
upgrades would not alter the amount of impervious surface in the project area, so there 
would not be an increase in runoff, or of urban contaminants in stormwater.   
 
The algae removal system would improve operational efficiency at the WWTP. The 
WWTP operates under NPDES permit No. CA0079529 and under the Central Valley 
Regional Water Quality Control Board (RWQCB) Waste Discharge Requirements Order 
No. R5-2018-0012, which expires on May 31, 2023 (but is subject to reissuance).  This 
permit limits the amount of discharge from the WWTP allowed to enter surface waters 
(the Smuthers Ravine, which flows into the North Fork of the American River) and sets 
standards for various constituents in WWTP effluent, such as ammonia and total 
suspended solids. The algae removal system is not expected to adversely affect the 
effluent, so the WWTP would continue to comply with the WDR standards for water 
quality.27   
 
The solar panels would be placed on posts, which would not substantially increase the 
amount of impervious surface.  Runoff from the solar panels (with approximately 5,300 
square feet of total surface area) would fall to the ground and either be absorbed or 
drain to the WWTP’s drainage system, similar to existing conditions.  The panels would 
not contain surface contaminants (such as fuel on a roadway) that would be picked up 
by stormwater. 
 
 For the above reasons, the Proposed Project would not alter or exceed existing 
drainages and stormwater runoff systems, increase the amount of stormwater entering 
the local system and/or result in erosion or urban contaminants flowing into drainages or 
the local stormwater system.  Therefore, this impact would be less than significant.   
 

b. The Proposed Project would not use any groundwater, or alter groundwater recharge 
conditions.  Therefore, there would be no impact. 

 
d. A seiche is a periodic oscillation of a lake or other enclosed body of water typically 

brought about by an earthquake or wind event.  There are no lakes or other enclosed 
water bodies in or near the project site, so there is no potential for a seiche to occur 
there. The project site is not located in an area in which a tsunami could directly or 
indirectly affect project components. The project site is not located in a defined 100-year 
floodplain.28  None of the project components would extend into a floodway.  For these 
reasons, the Proposed Project would not release contaminants as the result of a flood 
hazard or tsunami or seiche events, and there would be no impact. 

 

                                                
27  Wood Rodgers, Inc., Colfax Project Report, Sewer Collection System and Wastewater Treatment Plant 

Improvements, March 2020, page 7. 
28  National Flood Insurance Program, Flood Insurance Rate Map, Map Number 06061C0500H, November 2, 2018. 

Attachment 3

















 
    3.  Environmental Checklist !

Colfax Sewer & WWTP Improvements Project  Draft Initial Study/MND 
  August 2020!3-49 

 
Issues 

Potentially 
Significant Impact 

Less-than-
Significant 
Impact with 
Mitigation 

Incorporated 

Less-than 
Significant 

Impact 

 
No  

Impact 
 

15. PUBLIC SERVICES 
Would the project result in substantial adverse physical impacts associated with the 
provision of new or physically altered governmental facilities, need for new or 
physically altered governmental facilities, the construction of which could cause 
significant environmental impacts, in order to maintain acceptable service ratios, 
response times or other performance objectives for any of the public services: 

 
 

 
 

 
a. Fire protection? 

 
! 

 
!  

 
"  

 
!  

 
b. Police protection? 

 
! 

 
!  

 
!  

 
" 

 
c. Schools? 

 
! 

 
! 

 
!  

 
" 

 
d. Parks? 

 
! 

 
! 

 
" 

 
! 

 
e. Other public facilities?  

 
! 

 
! 

 
! 

 
" 

 
 
Discussion 
 
a. Fire protection in the City of Colfax is provided by two fire stations--the Colfax Fire 

Department, located at 33 West Church Street, an the Colfax Station, located at  24020 
Fowler Avenue.   The Fowler Avenue station is operated by Cal Fire during fire season 
and Placer County Fire during winter season. This station is closest to the WWTP site.  
Other agencies that support the City with mutual aide are the Placer Hills Fire District in 
Meadow Vista and the Chicago Park/Peardale Fire Departments.  

 
 Certain construction activities, such as use of heavy equipment and welding, have the 

potential to ignite fires.  However, most construction activities would occur within 
developed areas, including streets, where there is little or no vegetation that would 
sustain a fire.  The solar facility site would be cleared of trees and vegetation prior to 
construction.  Further, the contractor would comply with Cal-OSHA standards for the 
storage and handling of fuels, flammable materials, and common construction-related 
hazardous materials and for fire prevention.  For these reasons, the Proposed Project is 
not expected to ignite a fire during construction. 

 
When construction is complete, the Proposed Project would not increase demand for fire 
protection services, because it would not result in an increase in new residential or other 
development.  Nor would the Proposed Project increase the risk of fire occurring.  The 
sewer pipeline after construction would be subsurface, and therefore not subject to or 
the cause of fires.  The algae removal system would be located within the developed 
portion of the WWTP site. The Solar facility would reduce the amount of fuel available for 
fire by clearing a 2-acre site on the hillside within the WWTP site.  Solar panels are 
manufactured from fire-resistant materials.  All electrical equipment and wiring would be 
installed in compliance with electrical codes, which include measures to minimize the 
risk of fire. For these reasons, impacts associated with fire protection would be less 
than significant. 
 

Attachment 3













 
 

   5.  Environmental Checklist  

 
Colfax Sewer & WWTP Improvements Project 3-55 Draft Initial Study/MND 
  August 2020!

b. Water service is provided to the City of Colfax by the Placer County Water Agency 
(PCWA).  Colfax is in PCWA Zone 3, which is served by water purchased from PG&E by 
PCWA.  PCWA operates a 1.24 million gallon per day (mgd) water treatment plant 
(WTP) in Colfax.34  In 2015, PCWA provided 442 acre feet of treated water to customers 
in Zone 3.35 

 
 The Proposed Project could use water during construction for dust control. This would 

be a small temporary use.  A small amount of water (up to 20,000 gallons per year) may 
be needed for cleaning and maintenance of the solar panels.   This amount of water 
would be available through PCWA’s existing water supplies, and would represent less 
than less than 1/10 of 1% of current treated water demand in Zone 3.  Therefore, this 
impact would be less than significant.   

 
  c. The Proposed Project would not generate any wastewater, but rather would increase the 

efficiency of the sewer system and WWTP operations.  Therefore, there would be no 
impact.   

 
d., e. The sewer line upgrades and solar facility would not generate any waste after 

construction.  The algae removal system would create approximately 20 tons per year of 
solids, which is equivalent to approximately 80 cubic yards.  The solids would be stored 
in the dewatering dumpsters and periodically hauled to the Western Regional Sanitary 
Landfill (WRSL) in Roseville.  The WRSL is currently permitted to receive up to 1,900 
tons per day of waste, has a design capacity of 36,350,000 cubic yards, and is permitted 
to receive waste through January 2058. 36  The WRSL would have capacity to accept the 
additional waste from the Proposed Project.  The Proposed Project would comply with 
applicable regulations regarding disposal of effluent solids.  For these reasons, this 
impact would be less than significant. 

 
 

                                                
34 Placer County Water Agency, 2015 Urban Water Management Plan, June 2, 2016, page 2-12. 
35 Placer County Water Agency, 2015 Urban Water Management Plan, June 2, 2016, page 4-17. 
36 Solid Waste Facility Permit #31-AA-0210, December 11, 2012. 









 
 

   5.  Environmental Checklist  

 
Colfax Sewer & WWTP Improvements Project 3-59 Draft Initial Study/MND 
  August 2020!

mitigation measures, impacts on biological and archaeological resources would be less 
than significant.   

   
b. Cumulative impacts can occur when the incremental effects of an individual project are 

considered in the context of other projects, and when considered together the combined 
effects of those projects would compound or increase one or more impacts.  Most of the 
impacts of the Proposed Project would occur during construction, and would be of short 
duration.   Therefore, a cumulative impact could occur during the period of construction if 
other construction activities were to occur in the same area as the Proposed Project.  
For the sewer line upgrades, project construction activities would occur along the 
existing sewer alignments, most of which occur in areas that are already developed.  
There are several projects proposed or approved within the City that could occur in a 
similar timeframe to the Proposed Project.  These include the Maidu Village, a   
commercial center on 8.4 acres located on South Auburn Street, the Sierra Oaks 
Estates, a 34-home subdivision located off of Iowa Hill Road at Forest Avenue, Village 
Oaks Community, a 13-acre project that would develop 39 single family homes off of 
Iowa Hill Road, the Auburn Street Hotel, a 69-room, 2-story hotel located at South 
Auburn Street, and the Whitcomb Avenue Office and Self-Storage Facility on a 3-acre 
site on Whitcomb Avenue.38   Portions of the existing sewer pipelines are located 
adjacent to each of these projects, so there is the potential for construction activities to 
occur simultaneously.  There are no projects proposed or approved in proximity to the 
WWTP, so it is unlikely that it would contribute to cumulative construction impacts that 
are based on proximity to similar activities (e.g., construction noise).  After construction, 
the sewer pipelines would be subsurface and the surface would be returned to its 
original condition.  Therefore, the sewer pipeline would not contribute to cumulative 
impacts after construction.  Operation of the solar facility and the algae control facility 
could occur, but would be limited to more regional cumulative impacts, such as air 
pollutant emissions, greenhouse gases and use of hazardous materials.  As discussed 
in more detail below, while the Proposed Project could contribute to cumulative impacts 
in proximity to construction activities, and, in some cases, in the region, with mitigation 
identified in this Initial Study, the contribution would not be considerable.  
 
The solar facility would result in the loss of approximately 2 acres of forestland and 
access to mineral resources (Items 2.d and e and 12).  However, these resources are 
located within the City’s WWTP, and would therefore be unlikely to be harvested as part 
of a larger forestry or mineral resource effort.  Further, the loss of 2 acres of these 
resources in the context of existing forestlands and mineral resources in the county and 
region would be insignificant.  Both construction and operational air emissions would be 
below the thresholds for standards for cumulative impacts (Item 3). As discussed in Item 
4 the biological habitat within the project site is marginal and fragmented.  The only 
special-status species that could occur within the areas to be disturbed are two plant 
species.  Nesting birds could also be affected by project construction.  Mitigation 
measures identified in Item 4 would protect the plant species and nesting birds so that 
there would not be a contribution to the cumulative loss of these species.  No cultural 
resources were identified within the project site during surveys (see Item 5), but 
subsurface resources could be present and subject to disturbance during project grading 
and excavation.  Similarly, the project site contains geologic formations that could 
contain fossils that, if present, could be destroyed during construction (Item 7).  

                                                
38  City of Colfax, Current Planning Projects, accessed at http://colfax-ca.gov/government/planning/current-projects/, 

June 18, 2020. 



































/ƻƭŦŀȄ
tǊƻƧŜŎǘ /ƻƴǎǘǊǳŎǘƛƻƴ !ǎǎǳƳǇǘƛƻƴǎ

Paving
Details

ŀŎǊŜǎ ƻŦ ŀǎǇƘŀƭǘ лΦсл

Equipment Type І IǊǎκŘŀȅ It [C

WŀŎƪƘŀƳƳŜǊ н
tŀǾŜǊǎ м у ŘŜŦŀǳƭǘ ŘŜŦŀǳƭǘ

tŀǾƛƴƎ 9ǉǳƛǇƳŜƴǘ м у ŘŜŦŀǳƭǘ ŘŜŦŀǳƭǘ
{ƛƎƴŀƭ .ƻŀǊŘǎ м у ŘŜŦŀǳƭǘ ŘŜŦŀǳƭǘ

{ǳǊŦŀŎƛƴƎ ŜǉǳƛǇƳŜƴǘ м у ŘŜŦŀǳƭǘ ŘŜŦŀǳƭǘ

Iŀǳƭ ¢ǊǳŎƪ р

Trenchless Pipe Rehab

Equipment Type І IǊǎκŘŀȅ It [C

!ŜǊƛŀƭ Cƭƻǘŀǘƛƻƴ 5ŜǾƛŎŜ Lƴǎǘŀƭƭŀǘƛƻƴ
Drainage/Utilities/Trenching

Details
ǘƻǘŀƭ ƛƳǇƻǊǘ Ŏȅǎ л /ȅκǘǊǳŎƪ л
ǘƻǘŀƭ ŜȄǇƻǊǘ Ŏȅǎ л ƳƛƭŜǎκǘǊƛǇ л
ǘƻǘŀƭ Ƙŀǳƭ ǘǊǳŎƪǎ л

Equipment Type І IǊǎκŘŀȅ It [C
.ŀŎƪƘƻŜǎ м у ŘŜŦŀǳƭǘ ŘŜŦŀǳƭǘ
ǘǊŜƴŎƘŜǊǎ м у ŘŜŦŀǳƭǘ ŘŜŦŀǳƭǘ
Iŀǳƭ ¢ǊǳŎƪ м

Foundation/Concrete Pour

Details
ǘƻǘŀƭ ƛƳǇƻǊǘ Ŏȅǎ сс /ȅκǘǊǳŎƪ мл
Řŀƛƭȅ ƛƳǇƻǊǘ Ŏȅǎ сс ƳƛƭŜǎκǘǊƛǇ л
ǘƻǘŀƭ Ƙŀǳƭ ǘǊǳŎƪǎ т

Equipment Type І IǊǎκŘŀȅ It [C
.ŀŎƪƘƻŜǎ м у ŘŜŦŀǳƭǘ ŘŜŦŀǳƭǘ

ŎŜƳŜƴǘκaƻǊǘŀǊ aƛȄŜǊǎ м с ŘŜŦŀǳƭǘ ŘŜŦŀǳƭǘ

Iŀǳƭ ¢ǊǳŎƪ м

IŜŀǾȅ 9ǉǳƛǇƳŜƴǘ ǇŀǊǘ ƻŦ 5ǊŀƛƴŀƎŜκ¦ǘƛƭƛǘƛŜǎκ¢ǊŜƴŎƘƛƴƎ ǇƘŀǎŜ

±ŜƴŘƻǊ ǘǊƛǇǎ

±ŜƴŘƻǊ ǘǊƛǇǎ

±ŜƴŘƻǊ ǘǊƛǇǎ

ŀǎǎǳƳŜŘ ǇƴŜǳƳŀǘƛŎκŜƭŜŎǘǊƛŎ 









1. Air Quality Summary - Construction
2. Air Quality Summary - Operational
3. GHG Emissions Summary

!¢¢!/Ia9b¢ .
/ŀƭŎǳƭŀǘƛƻƴǎ

















.оΦ DID 9Ƴƛǎǎƛƻƴǎ {ǳƳƳŀǊȅ







1. CalEEMod - Construction
2. CalEEMod - Operational
3. EMFAC2017 

!¢¢!/Ia9b¢ /
aƻŘŜƭƛƴƎ hǳǘǇǳǘ



























SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

PM2.5 
Total

Bio- CO2 NBio- CO2

Mitigated Construction Off-Site

ROG NOx CO Total CO2 CH4 N2O CO2e

Category lb/day lb/day

PM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

Hauling 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

Vendor 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

Worker 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

Total 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.00000.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

0.0000 0.0000

PM2.5 
Total

Bio- CO2 NBio- CO2

3.5 Solar - Foundation Pour - 2021

Unmitigated Construction On-Site

ROG NOx CO Total CO2 CH4 N2O CO2e

Category lb/day lb/day

PM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

Off-Road 0.6132 6.3462 6.3150 0.0139 0.3034 0.3034 0.2799 0.2799 1,327.154
4

1,327.1544 0.4209 1,337.677
1

Paving 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

Total 0.6132 6.3462 6.3150 0.0139 0.4209 1,337.677
1

0.3034 0.3034 0.2799 0.2799

SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

1,327.154
4

1,327.1544

PM2.5 
Total

Bio- CO2 NBio- CO2

Unmitigated Construction Off-Site

ROG NOx CO Total CO2 CH4 N2O CO2ePM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

































Category lb/day lb/day

Hauling 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

Vendor 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

Worker 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

Total 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.00000.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

0.0000 0.0000

PM2.5 
Total

Bio- CO2 NBio- CO2

Mitigated Construction On-Site

ROG NOx CO Total CO2 CH4 N2O CO2e

Category lb/day lb/day

PM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

Fugitive Dust 5.2200e-
003

0.0000 5.2200e-
003

7.9000e-
004

0.0000 7.9000e-
004

0.0000 0.0000

Off-Road 0.1873 1.8958 2.2602 3.1100e-
003

0.1118 0.1118 0.1028 0.1028 0.0000 300.9001 300.9001 0.0973 303.3330

Total 0.1873 1.8958 2.2602 3.1100e-
003

0.0973 303.33305.2200e-
003

0.1118 0.1170 7.9000e-
004

0.1028 0.1036

SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

0.0000 300.9001 300.9001

PM2.5 
Total

Bio- CO2 NBio- CO2

Mitigated Construction Off-Site

ROG NOx CO Total CO2 CH4 N2O CO2e

Category lb/day lb/day

PM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

Hauling 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

Vendor 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

Worker 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

















Off-Road 0.7593 7.5798 7.3953 0.0167 0.3280 0.3280 0.3051 0.3051 1,558.590
8

1,558.5908 0.4716 1,570.380
6

Paving 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

Total 0.7593 7.5798 7.3953 0.0167 0.4716 1,570.380
6

0.3280 0.3280 0.3051 0.3051

SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

1,558.590
8

1,558.5908

PM2.5 
Total

Bio- CO2 NBio- CO2

Unmitigated Construction Off-Site

ROG NOx CO Total CO2 CH4 N2O CO2e

Category lb/day lb/day

PM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

Hauling 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

Vendor 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

Worker 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

Total 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.00000.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

0.0000 0.0000

PM2.5 
Total

Bio- CO2 NBio- CO2

Mitigated Construction On-Site

ROG NOx CO Total CO2 CH4 N2O CO2e

Category lb/day lb/day

PM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

Off-Road 0.7593 7.5798 7.3953 0.0167 0.3280 0.3280 0.3051 0.3051 0.0000 1,558.590
8

1,558.5908 0.4716 1,570.380
6

Paving 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

Total 0.7593 7.5798 7.3953 0.0167 0.4716 1,570.380
6

0.3280 0.3280 0.3051 0.3051 0.0000 1,558.590
8

1,558.5908







Total 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.00000.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

0.0000 0.0000

PM2.5 
Total

Bio- CO2 NBio- CO2

3.9 AF - Foundation Pour - 2021

Unmitigated Construction On-Site

ROG NOx CO Total CO2 CH4 N2O CO2e

Category lb/day lb/day

PM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

Off-Road 0.2313 2.1719 2.4915 3.6400e-
003

0.1225 0.1225 0.1136 0.1136 338.7873 338.7873 0.1013 341.3186

Paving 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

Total 0.2313 2.1719 2.4915 3.6400e-
003

0.1013 341.31860.1225 0.1225 0.1136 0.1136

SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

338.7873 338.7873

PM2.5 
Total

Bio- CO2 NBio- CO2

Unmitigated Construction Off-Site

ROG NOx CO Total CO2 CH4 N2O CO2e

Category lb/day lb/day

PM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

Hauling 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

Vendor 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

Worker 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

Total 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.00000.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

Mitigated Construction On-Site





Off-road Equipment - Equipment provided

Off-road Equipment - Equipment provided

Off-road Equipment - Equipment provided

Off-road Equipment - Equipment provided

1.3 User Entered Comments & Non-Default Data

Project Characteristics - 

Land Use - See Assumptions - Parking used because it is a solar farm and there is no building construction associated with it.

Construction Phase - See Assumptions

Off-road Equipment - Equipment provided

Off-road Equipment - Equipment provided

CO2 Intensity 
(lb/MWhr)

641.35 CH4 Intensity 
(lb/MWhr)

0.029 N2O Intensity 
(lb/MWhr)

0.006

74

Climate Zone 2 Operational Year 2022

Utility Company Pacific Gas & Electric Company

1.2 Other Project Characteristics

Urbanization Urban Wind Speed (m/s) 2.2 Precipitation Freq (Days)

Floor Surface Area Population

Other Non-Asphalt Surfaces 3.50 Acre 3.50 152,460.00 0

1.0 Project Characteristics

1.1 Land Usage

Land Uses Size Metric Lot Acreage

CalEEMod Version: CalEEMod.2016.3.2
Page 1 of 1 Date: 5/9/2020 3:42 PM

Colfax  - Construction Only - Placer-Mountain Counties County, Annual

Colfax  - Construction Only
Placer-Mountain Counties County, Annual







Quarter Start Date End Date Maximum Unmitigated ROG + NOX (tons/quarter) Maximum Mitigated ROG + NOX (tons/quarter)

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0057.21 0.00 2.04 56.52 0.00 0.24

NBio-CO2 Total CO2 CH4 N20 CO2e

Percent 
Reduction

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Exhaust 
PM10

PM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

PM2.5 
Total

Bio- CO2ROG NOx CO SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

0.0000 181.8726 181.8726 0.0471 0.0000 183.04949.2000e-
004

0.0581 0.0591 1.0000e-
004

0.0547 0.0548Maximum 0.1200 1.1244 1.1853 2.1400e-
003

0.0000 181.8726 181.8726 0.0471 0.0000 183.04949.2000e-
004

0.0581 0.0591 1.0000e-
004

0.0547 0.05482021 0.1200 1.1244 1.1853 2.1400e-
003

Total CO2 CH4 N2O CO2e

Year tons/yr MT/yr

PM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

PM2.5 
Total

Bio- CO2 NBio- CO2

Mitigated Construction

ROG NOx CO SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

0.0000 181.8729 181.8729 0.0471 0.0000 183.04962.1500e-
003

0.0581 0.0603 2.3000e-
004

0.0547 0.0549Maximum 0.1200 1.1244 1.1853 2.1400e-
003

0.0000 181.8729 181.8729 0.0471 0.0000 183.04962.1500e-
003

0.0581 0.0603 2.3000e-
004

0.0547 0.05492021 0.1200 1.1244 1.1853 2.1400e-
003

CH4 N2O CO2e

Year tons/yr MT/yr

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

PM2.5 
Total

Bio- CO2 NBio- CO2 Total CO2

Unmitigated Construction

ROG NOx CO SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

PM10 
Total

2.0 Emissions Summary

2.1 Overall Construction









Total CO2 CH4 N2O CO2ePM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

PM2.5 
Total

Bio- CO2 NBio- CO2

Mitigated Construction Off-Site

ROG NOx CO SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

0.0000 0.6824 0.6824 2.2000e-
004

0.0000 0.68801.0000e-
005

2.8000e-
004

2.9000e-
004

0.0000 2.6000e-
004

2.6000e-
004

Total 4.7000e-
004

4.7400e-
003

5.6500e-
003

1.0000e-
005

0.0000 0.6824 0.6824 2.2000e-
004

0.0000 0.68802.8000e-
004

2.8000e-
004

2.6000e-
004

2.6000e-
004

Off-Road 4.7000e-
004

4.7400e-
003

5.6500e-
003

1.0000e-
005

0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.00001.0000e-
005

0.0000 1.0000e-
005

0.0000 0.0000 0.0000Fugitive Dust

Total CO2 CH4 N2O CO2e

Category tons/yr MT/yr

PM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

PM2.5 
Total

Bio- CO2 NBio- CO2

Mitigated Construction On-Site

ROG NOx CO SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.00000.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000Total 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.00000.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000Worker 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.00000.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000Vendor 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.00000.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000Hauling 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

Total CO2 CH4 N2O CO2e

Category tons/yr MT/yr

PM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

PM2.5 
Total

Bio- CO2 NBio- CO2

Unmitigated Construction Off-Site

ROG NOx CO SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10











Total CO2 CH4 N2O CO2ePM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

PM2.5 
Total

Bio- CO2 NBio- CO2

Mitigated Construction Off-Site

ROG NOx CO SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

0.0000 6.0199 6.0199 1.9100e-
003

0.0000 6.06761.5200e-
003

1.5200e-
003

1.4000e-
003

1.4000e-
003

Total 3.0700e-
003

0.0317 0.0316 7.0000e-
005

0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.00000.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000Paving 0.0000

0.0000 6.0199 6.0199 1.9100e-
003

0.0000 6.06761.5200e-
003

1.5200e-
003

1.4000e-
003

1.4000e-
003

Off-Road 3.0700e-
003

0.0317 0.0316 7.0000e-
005

Total CO2 CH4 N2O CO2e

Category tons/yr MT/yr

PM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

PM2.5 
Total

Bio- CO2 NBio- CO2

Mitigated Construction On-Site

ROG NOx CO SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.00000.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000Total 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.00000.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000Worker 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.00000.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000Vendor 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.00000.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000Hauling 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

Total CO2 CH4 N2O CO2e

Category tons/yr MT/yr

PM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

PM2.5 
Total

Bio- CO2 NBio- CO2

Unmitigated Construction Off-Site

ROG NOx CO SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10













0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.00000.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000Worker 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.00000.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000Vendor 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.00000.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000Hauling 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

Total CO2 CH4 N2O CO2e

Category tons/yr MT/yr

PM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

PM2.5 
Total

Bio- CO2 NBio- CO2

Unmitigated Construction Off-Site

ROG NOx CO SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

0.0000 1.5367 1.5367 4.6000e-
004

0.0000 1.54826.1000e-
004

6.1000e-
004

5.7000e-
004

5.7000e-
004

Total 1.1600e-
003

0.0109 0.0125 2.0000e-
005

0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.00000.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000Paving 0.0000

0.0000 1.5367 1.5367 4.6000e-
004

0.0000 1.54826.1000e-
004

6.1000e-
004

5.7000e-
004

5.7000e-
004

Off-Road 1.1600e-
003

0.0109 0.0125 2.0000e-
005

Total CO2 CH4 N2O CO2e

Category tons/yr MT/yr

PM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

PM2.5 
Total

Bio- CO2 NBio- CO2

3.9 AF - Foundation Pour - 2021

Unmitigated Construction On-Site

ROG NOx CO SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.00000.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000Total 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.00000.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000Worker 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.00000.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000Vendor 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.00000.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000Hauling 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

Category tons/yr MT/yr





































































/ƻƴǎǘǊǳŎǘƛƻƴ tƘŀǎŜ

{ƻƭŀǊ π {ƛǘŜ tǊŜǇŀǊŀǘƛƻƴ
¢ƻǘŀƭ Iŀǳƭ ¢ǊƛǇǎ
IŀǳƭƛƴƎ
±ŜƴŘƻǊ
²ƻǊƪŜǊ

{ƻƭŀǊ π DǊŀŘƛƴƎ
¢ƻǘŀƭ Iŀǳƭ ¢ǊƛǇǎ
IŀǳƭƛƴƎ
±ŜƴŘƻǊ
²ƻǊƪŜǊ

{ƻƭŀǊ π ¦ǘƛƭƛǘƛŜǎ
¢ƻǘŀƭ Iŀǳƭ ¢ǊƛǇǎ
IŀǳƭƛƴƎ
±ŜƴŘƻǊ
²ƻǊƪŜǊ

{ƻƭŀǊ π CƻǳƴŘŀǘƛƻƴ
¢ƻǘŀƭ Iŀǳƭ ¢ǊƛǇǎ
IŀǳƭƛƴƎ
±ŜƴŘƻǊ
²ƻǊƪŜǊ

tƛǇŜƭƛƴŜ π ¦ǘƛƭƛǘƛŜǎ
¢ƻǘŀƭ Iŀǳƭ ¢ǊƛǇǎ
IŀǳƭƛƴƎ
±ŜƴŘƻǊ
²ƻǊƪŜǊ

tƛǇŜƭƛƴŜ π ¢ǊŜƴŎƘƭŜǎǎ wŜƘŀō
¢ƻǘŀƭ Iŀǳƭ ¢ǊƛǇǎ
IŀǳƭƛƴƎ
±ŜƴŘƻǊ
²ƻǊƪŜǊ

tƛǇŜƭƛƴŜ π tŀǾƛƴƎ
¢ƻǘŀƭ Iŀǳƭ ¢ǊƛǇǎ
IŀǳƭƛƴƎ
±ŜƴŘƻǊ
²ƻǊƪŜǊ

!C π ¦ǘƛƭƛǘƛŜǎ
¢ƻǘŀƭ Iŀǳƭ ¢ǊƛǇǎ
IŀǳƭƛƴƎ
±ŜƴŘƻǊ
²ƻǊƪŜǊ

!C π CƻǳƴŘŀǘƛƻƴ
¢ƻǘŀƭ Iŀǳƭ ¢ǊƛǇǎ
IŀǳƭƛƴƎ
±ŜƴŘƻǊ
²ƻǊƪŜǊ

όǇƻǳƴŘǎκŘŀȅύ όa¢κȅǊύ
taмл taмл ¢ƻǘŀƭ taнΦр taнΦр ¢ƻǘŀƭ ¢ƻǘŀƭ

whD bh· /h {hн 5ǳǎǘ 9ȄƘ taмл 5ǳǎǘ 9ȄƘ taнΦр /hнŜ

лΦмс оΦнт мΦсп лΦлм лΦнм лΦло лΦнп лΦлс лΦло лΦлф мΦпу
лΦлн лΦоо лΦнм лΦлл лΦлн лΦлл лΦлн лΦлм лΦлл лΦлм лΦно
лΦлл лΦлм лΦмс лΦлл лΦлт лΦлл лΦлт лΦлн лΦлл лΦлн лΦмо

лΦлл лΦлл лΦлл лΦлл лΦлл лΦлл лΦлл лΦлл лΦлл лΦлл лΦлл
лΦлл лΦлл лΦлл лΦлл лΦлл лΦлл лΦлл лΦлл лΦлл лΦлл лΦлл
лΦлл лΦлм лΦмс лΦлл лΦлт лΦлл лΦлт лΦлн лΦлл лΦлн лΦмо

лΦлл лΦлл лΦлл лΦлл лΦлл лΦлл лΦлл лΦлл лΦлл лΦлл лΦлл
лΦлл лΦлл лΦлл лΦлл лΦлл лΦлл лΦлл лΦлл лΦлл лΦлл лΦлл
лΦлл лΦлм лΦмс лΦлл лΦлт лΦлл лΦлт лΦлн лΦлл лΦлн лΦнс

лΦмл мΦфм лΦфс лΦлм лΦмн лΦлн лΦмп лΦло лΦлн лΦлр лΦру
лΦлл лΦлл лΦлл лΦлл лΦлл лΦлл лΦлл лΦлл лΦлл лΦлл лΦлл
лΦлл лΦлм лΦмс лΦлл лΦлт лΦлл лΦлт лΦлн лΦлл лΦлн лΦнс

лΦлл лΦлл лΦлл лΦлл лΦлл лΦлл лΦлл лΦлл лΦлл лΦлл лΦлл
лΦлн лΦоо лΦнм лΦлл лΦлн лΦлл лΦлн лΦлм лΦлл лΦлм пΦфф
лΦлм лΦло лΦоо лΦлл лΦмо лΦлл лΦмо лΦло лΦлл лΦлп рΦрс

лΦлл лΦлл лΦлл лΦлл лΦлл лΦлл лΦлл лΦлл лΦлл лΦлл лΦлл
лΦлл лΦлл лΦлл лΦлл лΦлл лΦлл лΦлл лΦлл лΦлл лΦлл лΦлл
лΦлл лΦлн лΦнп лΦлл лΦмл лΦлл лΦмл лΦло лΦлл лΦло пΦмт

лΦлл лΦлл лΦлл лΦлл лΦлл лΦлл лΦлл лΦлл лΦлл лΦлл лΦлл
лΦло лΦрр лΦор лΦлл лΦло лΦлл лΦлп лΦлм лΦлл лΦлм уΦом
лΦлл лΦлн лΦнл лΦлл лΦлу лΦлл лΦлу лΦлн лΦлл лΦлн оΦпу

лΦлл лΦлл лΦлл лΦлл лΦлл лΦлл лΦлл лΦлл лΦлл лΦлл лΦлл
лΦлм лΦмм лΦлт лΦлл лΦлм лΦлл лΦлм лΦлл лΦлл лΦлл лΦмр
лΦлл лΦлм лΦмн лΦлл лΦлр лΦлл лΦлр лΦлм лΦлл лΦлм лΦмф

лΦмл мΦфм лΦфс лΦлм лΦмн лΦлн лΦмп лΦло лΦлн лΦлр лΦнф
лΦлм лΦмм лΦлт лΦлл лΦлм лΦлл лΦлм лΦлл лΦлл лΦлл лΦмр
лΦлл лΦлм лΦмн лΦлл лΦлр лΦлл лΦлр лΦлм лΦлл лΦлм лΦмф

wŜƎƛƻƴŀƭ 9Ƴƛǎǎƛƻƴǎ

/ƻƭŦŀȄ
¢ƻǘŀƭ hƴπwƻŀŘ 9Ƴƛǎǎƛƻƴǎ































LŘƭƛƴƎ 9Ƴƛǎǎƛƻƴǎ
/ƻƭŦŀȄ





whD bh· /h {hн taмл taнΦр
нлнмIŀǳƭƛƴƎ IŀǳƭƛƴƎ лΦнтнутррм оΦптссоптлм оΦрсусунон лΦллснплу лΦллрорсмп лΦллрмнппо
нлнм±ŜƴŘƻǊ ±ŜƴŘƻǊ лΦмплнрртп мΦуфмуртрлу мΦурунрумм лΦллонфпн лΦллолттнф лΦллнфппмт
нлнм²ƻǊƪŜǊ ²ƻǊƪŜǊ л л л л л л

D²t bκ! bκ! bκ! bκ! bκ! bκ!

5ŀƛƭȅ Iŀǳƭ 5ŀȅǎ ²ƻǊƪ IƻǳǊǎ LŘƭƛƴƎ wŜƎƛƻƴŀƭ 9Ƴƛǎǎƛƻƴǎ

/ƻƴǎǘǊǳŎǘƛƻƴ tƘŀǎŜ hƴŜπ²ŀȅ  ǇŜǊ tƘŀǎŜ ǇŜǊ 5ŀȅ ƳƛƴǳǘŜǎ
¢ǊƛǇǎ ǇŜǊ 5ŀȅ

όŘŀȅǎύ όƘƻǳǊǎκŘŀȅύ όƳƛƭŜǎύ whD bh· /h {hн taмл taнΦр

όǇƻǳƴŘǎκŘŀȅύ

/ƻƭŦŀȄ
LŘƭƛƴƎ 9Ƴƛǎǎƛƻƴǎ

LŘƭƛƴƎ 9Ƴƛǎǎƛƻƴǎ CŀŎǘƻǊ

όƎǊŀƳǎκƳƛƴǳǘŜύ

{ƻƭŀǊ π ¦ǘƛƭƛǘƛŜǎ нлнм
¢ƻǘŀƭ Iŀǳƭ ¢ǊƛǇǎ л
IŀǳƭƛƴƎ л мл мм мр лΦлл лΦлл лΦлл лΦлл лΦлл лΦлл
±ŜƴŘƻǊ л мл мм мр лΦлл лΦлл лΦлл лΦлл лΦлл лΦлл
²ƻǊƪŜǊ у мл мм л лΦлл лΦлл лΦлл лΦлл лΦлл лΦлл

{ƻƭŀǊ π CƻǳƴŘŀǘƛƻƴ нлнм
¢ƻǘŀƭ Iŀǳƭ ¢ǊƛǇǎ мо
IŀǳƭƛƴƎ т н мм мр лΦлс лΦул лΦуо лΦлл лΦлл лΦлл
±ŜƴŘƻǊ л мл мм мр лΦлл лΦлл лΦлл лΦлл лΦлл лΦлл
²ƻǊƪŜǊ у мл мм л лΦлл лΦлл лΦлл лΦлл лΦлл лΦлл

























































 
 

BIOLOGICAL AND WETLANDS RESOURCES ASSESSMENT 
FOR THE 

 
I&I MITIGATION AND WWTP PROJECT 

 
CITY OF COLFAX, PLACER COUNTY, CALIFORNIA 

 
 

Prepared for: 
Adrienne Graham 
4533 Oxbow Drive 

Sacramento, CA 95864 
 
 

Prepared by: 
 

 
11601 Blocker Drive, Ste. 100 

Auburn, California  95603 
(530) 888-0130 

 
 
 
 

JULY 2020 



























Figure 4b
AERIAL SITE PHOTOS
I&I Mitigation and WWTP Project

City of Colfax, Placer County, CA

Looking north over existing WWTP, Pond 2, Staging Area 1 of the WWTP study area. 
Photo Date 01-15-20. 

Looking south over proposed Alternative 2 and Alternative 3 sites in the southern 
portion of the WWTP study area. 
Photo Date 01-15-20. 

Staging Area 1

Staging Area 2

Staging Area 3





























https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Nodding
https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Tepal








http://www.dfg.ca.gov/wildlife/nongame/t_e_spp/docs/2004/t_ebirds.pdf
http://www.california.herps.com/










































http://www.waterboards.ca.gov/centralvalley/water_issues/basin_plans/


Sewer Collection System and Wastewater - 3 - 11 September 2020  
Treatment Plant Improvements Project  
Placer County 
 

http://www.waterboards.ca.gov/water_issues/programs/stormwater/constpermits.sht
ml 
Phase I and II Municipal Separate Storm Sewer System (MS4) Permits1 
The Phase I and II MS4 permits require the Permittees reduce pollutants and runoff 
flows from new development and redevelopment using Best Management Practices 
(BMPs) to the maximum extent practicable (MEP).  MS4 Permittees have their own 
development standards, also known as Low Impact Development (LID)/post-
construction standards that include a hydromodification component.  The MS4 
permits also require specific design concepts for LID/post-construction BMPs in the 
early stages of a project during the entitlement and CEQA process and the 
development plan review process. 
For more information on which Phase I MS4 Permit this project applies to, visit the 
Central Valley Water Board website at:   
http://www.waterboards.ca.gov/centralvalley/water_issues/storm_water/municipal_p
ermits/ 
For more information on the Phase II MS4 permit and who it applies to, visit the 
State Water Resources Control Board at: 
http://www.waterboards.ca.gov/water_issues/programs/stormwater/phase_ii_munici
pal.shtml 
Industrial Storm Water General Permit  
Storm water discharges associated with industrial sites must comply with the 
regulations contained in the Industrial Storm Water General Permit Order No. 2014-
0057-DWQ.  For more information on the Industrial Storm Water General Permit, 
visit the Central Valley Water Board website at: 
http://www.waterboards.ca.gov/centralvalley/water_issues/storm_water/industrial_ge
neral_permits/index.shtml 
Clean Water Act Section 404 Permit 
If the project will involve the discharge of dredged or fill material in navigable waters 
or wetlands, a permit pursuant to Section 404 of the Clean Water Act may be 
needed from the United States Army Corps of Engineers (USACE).  If a Section 404 
permit is required by the USACE, the Central Valley Water Board will review the 
permit application to ensure that discharge will not violate water quality standards.  If 
the project requires surface water drainage realignment, the applicant is advised to 
contact the Department of Fish and Game for information on Streambed Alteration 
Permit requirements.  If you have any questions regarding the Clean Water Act 

 
1 Municipal Permits = The Phase I Municipal Separate Storm Water System (MS4) 
Permit covers medium sized Municipalities (serving between 100,000 and 250,000 
people) and large sized municipalities (serving over 250,000 people).   The Phase II 
MS4 provides coverage for small municipalities, including non-traditional Small MS4s, 
which include military bases, public campuses, prisons and hospitals. 

http://www.waterboards.ca.gov/water_issues/programs/stormwater/constpermits.shtml
http://www.waterboards.ca.gov/water_issues/programs/stormwater/constpermits.shtml


Sewer Collection System and Wastewater - 4 - 11 September 2020  
Treatment Plant Improvements Project  
Placer County 
 

Section 404 permits, please contact the Regulatory Division of the Sacramento 
District of USACE at (916) 557-5250.   
Clean Water Act Section 401 Permit ï Water Quality Certification 
If an USACE permit (e.g., Non-Reporting Nationwide Permit, Nationwide Permit, 
Letter of Permission, Individual Permit, Regional General Permit, Programmatic 
General Permit), or any other federal permit (e.g., Section 10 of the Rivers and 
Harbors Act or Section 9 from the United States Coast Guard), is required for this 
project due to the disturbance of waters of the United States (such as streams and 
wetlands), then a Water Quality Certification must be obtained from the Central 
Valley Water Board prior to initiation of project activities.  There are no waivers for 
401 Water Quality Certifications.  For more information on the Water Quality 
Certification, visit the Central Valley Water Board website at:  
https://www.waterboards.ca.gov/centralvalley/water_issues/water_quality_certificatio
n/ 
Waste Discharge Requirements ï Discharges to Waters of the State 
If USACE determines that only non-jurisdictional waters of the State (i.e., ñnon-
federalò waters of the State) are present in the proposed project area, the proposed 
project may require a Waste Discharge Requirement (WDR) permit to be issued by 
Central Valley Water Board.  Under the California Porter-Cologne Water Quality 
Control Act, discharges to all waters of the State, including all wetlands and other 
waters of the State including, but not limited to, isolated wetlands, are subject to 
State regulation.   For more information on the Waste Discharges to Surface Water 
NPDES Program and WDR processes, visit the Central Valley Water Board website 
at:https://www.waterboards.ca.gov/centralvalley/water_issues/waste_to_surface_wat
er/ 
Projects involving excavation or fill activities impacting less than 0.2 acre or 400 
linear feet of non-jurisdictional waters of the state and projects involving dredging 
activities impacting less than 50 cubic yards of non-jurisdictional waters of the state 
may be eligible for coverage under the State Water Resources Control Board Water 
Quality Order No. 2004-0004-DWQ (General Order 2004-0004).  For more 
information on the General Order 2004-0004, visit the State Water Resources 
Control Board website at: 
https://www.waterboards.ca.gov/board_decisions/adopted_orders/water_quality/200
4/wqo/wqo2004-0004.pdf 
Dewatering Permit 
If the proposed project includes construction or groundwater dewatering to be 
discharged to land, the proponent may apply for coverage under State Water Board 
General Water Quality Order (Low Threat General Order) 2003-0003 or the Central 
Valley Water Boardôs Waiver of Report of Waste Discharge and Waste Discharge 
Requirements (Low Threat Waiver) R5-2018-0085.  Small temporary construction 
dewatering projects are projects that discharge groundwater to land from excavation 
activities or dewatering of underground utility vaults.  Dischargers seeking coverage 

















mailto:city.clerk@colfax-ca.gov










adriennegraham
Typewritten Text
Figure 2-2 (Revised)   Project Location

adriennegraham
Typewritten Text

adriennegraham
Typewritten Text





























    Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program 
 

Colfax Sewer & WWTP Improvements Project         Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program 
---Internal Draft---Subject to Revision                  August 2020 
  
  

6 

 

Table 1 
Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program  

Mitigation Measure 
Monitoring 

Agency 
Implementation 

Schedule 
Monitoring Compliance Record 

(Name/Date) 
4b. If human remains are discovered or uncovered during any phase of 

construction, all work in the area shall stop, and the  Placer County 
Coroner shall be notified immediately, according to Section 5097.98 of the 
State Public Resources Code and Section 7050.5 of California’s Health 
and Safety Code. No further excavation or disturbance of the site or any 
nearby area suspected to overlie adjacent remains shall occur until the 
Placer County Coroner has determined that the remains are not subject 
to any provisions of law concerning investigation of the circumstances, 
manner and cause of death, and the recommendations concerning the 
treatment and disposition of the human remains have been made to the 
person responsible for the excavation, or to his or her authorized 
representative. If the Placer County Coroner determines that the 
remains are not subject to his or her authority and if the Coroner 
recognizes the human remains to be those of a Native American or has 
reason to believe that they are those of a Native American, the Native 
American Heritage Commission (NAHC) shall be notified within 24 hours 
to request the names of the most likely descendent(s), and Public 
Resources Code Section 5097.98 shall be adhered to in the treatment 
and disposition of the remains.  The approved treatment and disposition 
of the remains shall be implemented before the resumption of ground-
disturbing activities within 50 feet of where the remains were discovered. 

 

 
Public Works 
Department  

 

 
During site 

preparation and 
construction 

 

7.  Geology and Soils 
5a. A worker education program prepared by a qualified professional 

paleontologist shall be distributed to all project construction workers who 
could be involved in ground disturbance.  The program shall include 
review of applicable local, state, and federal ordinances, laws, and 
regulations pertaining to paleontological resources; description of the 
types of fossils that can be encountered and their general appearance; 
and discussion of site avoidance requirements and notification 
procedures to be followed in the event that a sensitive paleontological 
resource is found during construction. 

 
5b. If paleontological resources (i.e., fossils) are discovered during ground 

disturbing activities, work shall be halted within 50 feet of the find and a 
qualified paleontologist shall evaluate the find.  If the find meets Society of 

 
Public Works 
Department  

 

 
During site 

preparation and 
construction 

 





  

City of Colfax Quarterly Sales Tax Analysis 

Staff Report October 14, 2020 

  

     

Staff Report to City Council 
 

FOR THE OCTOBER 14, 2020 REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
 

From: Wes Heathcock, City Manager 

Prepared by: Laurie Van Groningen, Finance Director 

Subject: Quarterly Sales Tax Analysis 
          Budget Impact Overview: 

N/A:   ã Funded:   Un-funded: Amount:   Fund(s):   

 

Summary/Background 

 

The City has received the final Accounting for Sales and Use Tax revenues for the quarter ended June 30, 2020. 

The City of Colfax contracts with Hdl Companies (Hdl) to manage and analyze Sales and Use Tax Revenues.  

The Covid-19 outbreak was anticipated to have a significant impact on Sales and Use Tax Revenues across our 

State.  For the last two quarters (reported at April and June regular council meeting) we reported estimates for the 

final two quarters of the 2019-2020 fiscal year and the 2020-2021 fiscal year based on a California consensus 

forecast of Statewide sales tax trends report reported by Hdl. These reports assumed that the statewide ñshelter in 

placeò directive would continue until the end of May and assumed the virus would run its course through the end 

of September 2020.  

Forecasting Sales and Use Tax Revenue is a challenge under normal circumstances. The forecasts that were 

provided by HDL were by major industry groups and were extrapolated to the previous year (fiscal year 2018-

2019) actual revenues ï which would not have accounted for sales tax base increases the City had already 

experienced in this reporting period.  Additionally, the forecasts were statewide, and did not account for individual 

jurisdictions for their own distinctive sales tax demographics and business characteristics.   

The Covid-19 outbreak does not appear to have the significant impact on the sales tax revenues for the quarter 

ended March 31, 2020 or June 30, 2020 for the City of Colfax that was previously forecast. As reflected in the 

chart below, our actuals revenues exceeded both the forecasts updated in April and June ï and also exceeded our 

original budget for the fiscal year. 

 

 

Sales tax revenues for Q2-2020 from taxes levied within the City jurisdiction (Point-of-Sale) had a slight decline 

of 3% as compared to the same quarter in the previous year.  The increase of 5% overall is due to a substantial 

increase in the County Pool allocation (increased 58% over same quarter previous year).  The County Pool 

allocation is primarily due to internet sales and shipments from outside of California which are reported to the 

County where items are shipped (residence, business, retail store, etc) and allocated to jurisdictions within County. 

 

RECOMMENDED ACTION:  Accept and File. 



  

City of Colfax Quarterly Sales Tax Analysis 

Staff Report October 14, 2020 

  

The chart below reflects sales tax revenue trends for the past two fiscal years ï and the current forecast and 

adopted budget for the new fiscal year 2020-2021 which began July 1st.  The current fiscal year 2020-2021 forecast 

continues to be based on the previous Hdl projections (highlighted in chart) and was based on returning to sales 

tax revenues similar to fiscal year 2018-2019. For budget purposes, the City elected to estimate a slightly 
more conservative forecast which was a 20% decrease of FY 2018-2019 sales tax revenues.  

 

 

 

Fiscal and Budget Impacts 

 

Our businesses continue to face challenging times and we likely have not seen all of the true impact of the 

Covid-19 Pandemic.  Staff will continue to monitor and provide updates as additional information is available. 

 

 
Attachments: 

1. Graph ï City of Colfax ï Sales and Use Tax Revenues 

2. Chart ï City of Colfax ï Sales and Use Tax Revenues History 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

406











1 

CITY OF COLFAX 

ORDINANCE NO. ___ 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF COLFAX ADDING COLFAX MUNICIPAL CODE 

CHAPTER 8.30 PROHIBITING SMOKING WITHIN DESIGNATED AREAS IN THE 

CITY OF COLFAX 

Colfax Municipal Code Title 8 is hereby amended by adding Chapter 8.30 as follows: 

8.30.010 Purpose and Intent 

The purposes of this Chapter are (A) to protect the public health and welfare by regulating 

smoking in public places under circumstances where people will be exposed to secondhand 

smoke, and (B) to strike a reasonable balance between the interests of persons who smoke and 

the interests of nonsmokers, including children, to breathe smoke-free air, recognizing the threat 

to public health and the environment which smoking causes and recognizing the right of 

residents and visitors of Colfax to be free from unwelcome secondhand smoke.  

8.30.020 Application 

The provisions of this Chapter shall apply  to all parcels within the outline of the Historic Core 

depicted on the Historic Core Map attached hereto including, but not limited to, Assessor Parcel 

Numbers: 006-042-005-000; 006-043-002-000 through 006-043-004-000; 006-043-006-000; 

006-043-007-000; 006-043-013-000; 006-066-009-000 through 006-066-013-000; 006-066-021-

000; 006-066-027-000; 006-066-028-000; 006-067-001-000 through 006-067-011-000; 006-071-

002-000 through 006-071-010-000; 006-072-001-000; 006-072-002-000; 006-091-006-000; 006-

091-007-000; 006-091-042-000; 006-093-021-000, and 006-093-022-000.  The owner of any

business or property within the Historic District may apply to the City Manager for permission to

establish a designated outdoor area of limited size in which persons may be allowed to smoke.

8.30.030 Definitions 

The following definitions shall apply to the provisions of this Chapter: 

A. ñBusinessò means any sole proprietorship, partnership, joint venture, corporation or other

entity formed for either profitmaking or charitable purposes, including without limitation

manufacturing concerns, retail or commercial establishments where goods or services are sold,

and professional corporations or other entities where legal, medical, dental, engineering,

architectural, financial or other professional services are delivered.

B. ñCityò or ñColfaxò shall mean and refer to the City of Colfax, a California Municipal

Corporation and general law city.

C. ñDining Areaò means an area containing tables or counters upon which meals are served.



http://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=SHC&sectionNum=5600






5 
 

E. Violation of the provisions of this Chapter is declared to be a public nuisance that may be 

abated by appropriate civil action. 

 

F. The remedies provided by this section are cumulative and are in addition to any other 

remedy existing in law or equity. 

 

8.30.070 Authority To Promulgate Reasonable Rules And Regulations 

 

The City Council reserves its right to adopt reasonable rules, regulations, and resolutions 

consistent with this Chapter to enforce, interpret, and carry out the provisions of this Chapter. 

Any such rules and regulations may be adopted by Resolution or Ordinance of the City Council. 

   







1 

CITY OF COLFAX 

ORDINANCE NO. ___ 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF COLFAX APPROVING A REIMBURSEMENT 

BETWEEN THE CITY OF COLFAX AND COLFAX HOSPITALITY PARTNERS, LLC 

Purpose and Intent 

The purpose of this Ordinance is to approve a reimbursement agreement between the City of 

Colfax (ñCityò) and Colfax Hospitality Partners, LLC (ñDeveloperò) whereby the City will 

reimburse the Developer for Developer constructing certain road improvements of supplemental 

size, capacity, number, or length for the benefit of property not within the development approved 

by City Resolution No. 43-2018 (the ñProjectò). The road improvements were imposed by City 

upon Developer as a condition to development of the Project and will be dedicated to the public.  

Approval of Reimbursement Agreement 

The City, having imposed upon the Developer as a condition of Project approval the requirement 

that the Developer construct certain road improvements of supplemental size, capacity, number, 

or length for the benefit of property not within the Project, and the City Council having found 

that the attached Agreement and the imposition of said conditions to be compliant with 

California Government Code Sections 66485 through 66489, inclusive, the City Council hereby 

(a) approves the attached Agreement, (b) authorizes the City Manager to execute said Agreement

for and on behalf of the City, (c) authorizes the City Manager or his designee to reimburse the

Developer in accordance with the terms of the attached Agreement, and (d) authorizes the City

Manager or his designee to appropriate, encumber and expend all funds necessary to comply

with the terms of said Agreement .




















	00 - Agenda pgs 1-3
	DRAFT Packet with page numbers
	05A - PH Osborn continuation
	06A - Minutes - Special Meeting 5-27-2020 - REVISED per Council Packet
	Special Meeting Minutes 5.27.2020 - with Item#
	06A - Minutes - Special Meeting 5-27-2020 - REVISED per Council Packet
	5-27 Meeting PowerPoint Slides 8-25


	06B - Minutes - Regular Meeting 9-23-20
	06C - WWTP Project & CEQA
	201014 Colfax Sewer WWTP Improvement Project I&I
	201014 Colfax Sewer WWTP Improvement Project Initial Resolution
	Attachment 2 Exhibit 2.2 revised
	Attachment 3 Colfax Sewer WWTP DIS MND Aug 2020
	Colfax Sewer & WWTP Imprvmts ADIS APPENDICES July 2020.pdf
	Colfax Sewer Bio Report 072720.pdf
	Table of Contents
	Introduction 1
	Methods 5
	Survey and Literature Search Results 6
	Recommendations 27
	References and Other Resources 29
	Tables



	Attachment 4 memoct12020.city DIS RTC
	Attachment 5 Colfax WWTP Draft MMRP Intro Aug 31 2020 (2)

	09A - Quarterly Sales Tax Analysis
	2020-10-14 Quarterly Sales Tax Analysis SR
	Sales Tax Chart Q2-2020

	09B - No Smoking Ordinance
	No Smoking Ordinance SR
	No Smoking Ordinance

	09C - Reimbursement Agreement Best Western
	201014 Best Western Reimbursement Ordinance Staff Report
	Best Western Reimb Agrmt Ordinance
	Best Western Reimbursement Agreement





